May 12, 2008

IA-08-001

Ms. Shannon A. Russell
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390]

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION — NRC INVESTIGATION REPORT NO. 3-2007-018
Dear Ms. Russell:

This refers to the investigation by the NRC Office of Investigations (Ol) at Ball Memorial Hospital
in Muncie, Indiana, to determine, in part, whether you, a nuclear medicine technologist,
deliberately failed to obtain a signature of an authorized user on a written directive prior to
administering 1-131 sodium iodide.

In a letter dated February 28, 2008, the NRC provided you an opportunity to address the
apparent violation identified in the letter by attending a predecisional enforcement conference,
by participating in an alternate dispute resolution session, or by providing a written response
before we made our final enforcement decision. On March 13, 2008, you notified us that you
would be providing a written response to the apparent violation and would not be requesting a
predecisional enforcement conference or alternate dispute resolution. In a letter sent on
March 28, 2008, you provided a response to the apparent violation.

Based on the results of the Ol investigation, the NRC has concluded that a deliberate violation
of NRC requirements occurred. The violation is cited in the enclosed Notice of Violation
(Notice) (Enclosure 1). Specifically, on April 30, 2007, you administered a single 2.24 millicurie
dose of I-131 sodium iodide to a patient without first obtaining the signature of an authorized
user on a written directive. While the NRC did not identify any actual significance to the
administration, as the patient was scheduled to receive the dose, the NRC is concerned
because you knew that a signed written directive was required, but delivered the dose without
getting the signature. Furthermore, you admitted during your interview with the Ol investigator
that you had previously administered doses of I-131 sodium iodide without having a signed
written directive.

Your actions caused Ball Memorial Hospital to be in violation of NRC regulations in Title 10 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR), Section 35.40, which specifically requires that a
written directive be dated and signed by an authorized user prior to administration of 1-131
sodium iodide in quantities of greater than 30 microcuries. Your actions also caused you to be
in violation of the NRC'’s deliberate misconduct rule (10 CFR 30.10), which prohibits employees
from engaging in deliberate misconduct that, if not detected, would cause a licensee to be in
violation of any regulation. Enclosure 2 includes a copy of the letter and Notice of Violation
issued to Ball Memorial Hospital.

Given the significance of the underlying issue and the deliberate nature of your actions, this
violation has been categorized in accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy at Severity
Level IV. You should be aware that additional deliberate violations could result in more
significant enforcement or criminal action.
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In your response, mailed on March 28, 2008, you indicated that you understood the seriousness
of your actions and that it would not happen again. You indicated that you now make sure that
your actions are correct before you take them and that you check with your supervisor if you are
not 100 percent confident with regard to the appropriateness of your actions. You also
indicated that you are staying up-to-date on reviewing nuclear medicine regulations.

The NRC has concluded that we have sufficient information regarding the reason for the
violation and the actions you have taken to ensure this will not happen again, based upon your
letter sent on March 28, 2008. Therefore, you are not required to respond to this letter or the
enclosed Notice. However, should you want to respond to clarify or provide additional
information, you should follow the instructions specified in the enclosed Notice.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its
enclosures, and your response, if you choose to provide one, will be made available
electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s
document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/adams.html. To the extent possible, your response should not include any personal privacy,
proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made available to the public without
redaction. In addition, this letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC
Privacy Act system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3
system notice, which provides detailed information about this system of records, can be
accessed from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.htmi.

Should you have any questions, please contact Mr. Robert Gattone, Acting Chief, Materials
Inspection Branch, at (630) 829-9823.

Sincerely,
/RA by Mark A. Satorius Acting for/

James L. Caldwell
Regional Administrator

Enclosures:

1. Notice of Violation

2. Notice of Violation to
Ball Memorial Hospital

cc w/o encls: B. Batman, President
Ball Memorial Hospital
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In your response, mailed on March 28, 2008, you indicated that you understood the seriousness of your
actions and that it would not happen again. You indicated that you now make sure that your actions are
correct before you take them and that you check with your supervisor if you are not 100 percent confident
with regard to the appropriateness of your actions. You also indicated that you are staying up-to-date on
reviewing nuclear medicine regulations.

The NRC has concluded that we have sufficient information regarding the reason for the violation and the
actions you have taken to ensure this will not happen again, based upon your letter sent on March 28,
2008. Therefore, you are not required to respond to this letter or the enclosed Notice. However, should
you want to respond to clarify or provide additional information, you should follow the instructions specified
in the enclosed Notice.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its enclosures,
and your response, if you choose to provide one, will be made available electronically for public inspection
in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the
NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. To the extent possible, your response
should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made
available to the public without redaction. In addition, this letter will be maintained by the Office of
Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.”
The NRC-3 system notice, which provides detailed information about this system of records, can be
accessed from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.

Should you have any questions, please contact Mr. Robert Gattone, Acting Chief, Materials Inspection
Branch, at (630) 829-9823.

Sincerely,

/RA by Mark A. Satorius Acting for/
James L. Caldwell

Regional Administrator

Enclosures:
1. Notice of Violation
2. Notice of Violation to
Ball Memorial Hospital
cc w/o encls: B. Batman, President
Ball Memorial Hospital
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Ms. Shannon A. Russell
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390] 1A-08-001

During an NRC investigation concluded on November 16, 2007, a violation of NRC
requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the violation is
listed below:

10 CFR 30.10, "Deliberate Misconduct," prohibits licensee employees from engaging in
deliberate misconduct which causes the licensee to be in violation of any rule or
regulation, or any term, condition or limitation of any license issued by the NRC.

10 CFR 35.40 (a) requires that a written directive must be dated and signed by an
authorized user before the administration of 1-131 sodium iodide greater than
1.11 megabecquerels (30 microcuries).

Contrary to the above, on April 30, 2007, your deliberate misconduct caused the
licensee to be in violation of 10 CFR 35.40 (a) in that you administered 1-131 sodium
iodide in a dose greater than 30 microcuries to a patient without a signed and dated
written directive.

This is a Severity Level |V violation (Supplement VI).

The NRC has concluded that information regarding the reason for the violation, the corrective
actions taken and planned to be taken to correct the violation and prevent recurrence, and the
date when full compliance was achieved, is already adequately addressed in a letter to you
dated February 28, 2008, a letter from the licensee dated March 18, 2008, and a letter you sent
to the NRC on March 28, 2008. However, you are required to submit a written statement or
explanation pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201 if the description therein does not accurately reflect your
corrective actions or your position. In that case, or if you choose to respond, clearly mark your
response as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation, 1A-08-001," and send it to the U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, DC 20555-0001 with a
copy to the Regional Administrator, Region Ill, within 30 days of the date of the letter
transmitting this Notice of Violation (Notice).

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response, with
the basis for your denial, to the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001.

Because your response will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC
Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the
NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html, to the extent possible, it should not
include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made
available to the public without redaction. If personal privacy or proprietary information is
necessary to provide an acceptable response, then please provide a bracketed copy of your
response that identifies the information that should be protected and a redacted copy of your
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response that deletes such information. If you request withholding of such material, you must
specifically identify the portions of your response that you seek to have withheld and provide in
detail the bases for your claim of withholding (e.g., explain why the disclosure of information will
create an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or provide the information required by

10 CFR 2.390(b) to support a request for withholding confidential commercial or financial
information). This letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act
system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system
notice, which provides detailed information about this system of records, can be accessed from
the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.

Dated this 12" day of May 2008
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